Industry Questions Regarding the TEC Draft Request for Proposal
	?#
	Reference
	Section
	Question
	Government Response

	1
	5.3 Table B and 6.3 Table C
	C
	Is the TEC offeror responsible for maintaining and operating bonded storage areas other then the one located in Area 800?  Please provide the location of other bonded storage areas for which TEC is responsible in the SOW.
	Bond rooms are located in: Building 203 Offgassing Lab, Building 803 Material Preparation Lab, and Building 200 Room 166 Depot. The SOW has been modified.

	2
	7.0
	C
	The SOW does not contain information regarding the availability of Government supplied expendables for this contract.  Will NASA provide the TEC contractor access to Federal Stock for materials, consumables, and office supplies?
	TEC contractor will have access to the WSTF stores stock (FOSC function) for project or program support.   

	3
	J.4-List of Installation Accountable Property and Vehicles (IAP List)
	J
	Please clarify the number and use of the WSTF vehicles (2 - VAN STEP CHEVROLET SERIES P30) listed in the IAP List.  Could the WSTF vehicles also be used for transporting materials and people at the WSTF?  If not, are there different vehicles assigned to the TEC contractor?  
	Vehicles that are currently used to support TEC program requirements satisfy requirements for transporting materials and people and are leased yearly from GSA.  The number of GSA vehicles currently available for use by TEC is provided in Section J-4.  GSA vehicle requirements for the TEC will be evaluated annually by the WSTF NASA Vehicle review board to ensure the most cost effective use of vehicles to support TEC requirements.  The three vehicles listed in the TEC IAP are NASA owned and are primarily used for transporting equipment.

	4
	5.1 Materials and Components Test Projects
	C
	We were unable to locate the following documents on the WSTF Technical library website in the management system manual - search documents:
TP-WSTF-629
TP-WSTF-922
NASA TM-104823 (oxygen)
NASA TM-2003-212059 (hydrogen)
	The documents are now located in the TRL.

	5
	Delivery Order 1: SOW 4, 5.4 Applicable Documents
	L-4
	We were unable to locate the following document on the WSTF Technical library website in the management system manual - search documents:
S111066 - Primary Thruster Starvation Shutdown Test
	The documents are now located in the TRL

	6
	B.2 (a), F.2, F.5
	B,F
	There is a conflict in nomenclature between B.2 (a) and the nomenclature in the Tables under B.3 (b) and B.4 (b) that refer to “CR DOs (T1-__)” and “FFP DO’s (D1-__).”  There is a similar conflict between F.2 and F.5, and the Tables under F.6.  Please clarify the distinction between Delivery Orders and Task Orders, or confirm that IDIQ cost-reimbursable orders will be referred to as “task orders” and IDIQ fixed-price orders will be referred to as “delivery orders.”
	WSTF is using the term "Delivery Order" in a generic sense, meaning that both Task Orders and Delivery Orders will be referred to as Delivery Orders.  The DO/TO numbering system (i.e. T1; D1) indicates that the Delivery Orders numbered T1, T2, etc., are Cost Reimbursable and the DO's numbered D1, D2, etc., are Fixed Price.


As stated in block 9 of each DRL item listed in J-2 each DRD will be managed using SPICE.  SPICE accommodates attachment of MS Office files including Word, PowerPoint, and Excel. Other means of delivery, such as hardcopy and CD-ROM media, are specifically defined in the body of each DRD.

	SPICE is currently used at JSC for managing deliverables in select contracts.  It is anticipated that this system will be in place at WSTF to accommodate contract transition. 

	8
	L Part 2 L.4 4.1.3(c)
	L
	Section 4.1.3 Paragraph (c) states…” These targets will be expressed in dollars and percentages of total contract value in each joint venture partner and team member, and a total target for SDB participation will be specified…” Please clarify what will comprise “total contract value” in this context. For example, is it the sum of the Completion Form activity and sample DOs, or some other combination of proposed cost?
	The offerors should calculate the small business percentages based on the Completion Form IGE (Table 5), the IDIQ IGE (Table 6), the government estimate of the CF and IDIQ non-labor resources (table on pages 46 and 47 of Section L) adjusted by the offerors proposal under Specific Technical Understanding and Resources for CF and in the Organization and Key Personnel for IDIQ.

	26
	 
	L
	Please provide clear instruction on the method of calculation and specific quantity of FTEs and Materials/Supplies (both completion form and IDIQ) to be used to calculate the small business percentage. With the 30% requirement being based on Total Contract Value, and the amount of Materials/Supplies, FTE’s, and IDIQ delivery orders all being unknowns, it is impossible for the offeror to know that they have complied.
	The offerors should calculate the small business percentages based on the Completion Form IGE (Table 5), the IDIQ IGE (Table 6), the government estimate of the CF and IDIQ non-labor resources (table on pages 46 and 47 of Section L) adjusted by the offerors proposal under Specific Technical Understanding and Resources for CF and in the Organization and Key Personnel for IDIQ.

	9
	L Part 2 -  General Information to Offerors, A. (b)
	L
	Paragraph (b) references completion form Section 1 of the contract, but there is not a section 1 of the contract relative to Completion Form. Please verify that Paragraph (b) should reference Section 3 of the SOW – Completion Form Requirements.
	L PART 2 GENERAL INFORMATION TO OFFERORS A. (b) was rewritten to clarify that the completion form parts of Section 3 of the SOW is referenced.

	10
	L Part 2 - General Information to Offerors, Table 5
	L
	Table 5 contains 2 items identified as 3.2. Please confirm that Management and Administration of the TEC Contract should be identified as 3.1.
	3.2 is correct.  There was an error in the Table of Contents for Section C.

	29
	Table 5, Section L, page 37
	L
	“3.2 Management …” I believe should be labeled “3.1 Management
	3.2 is correct.  There was an error in the Table of Contents for Section C.

	11
	L Part 2 -General Information to Offerors, Table 5
	L
	Table 5 calls for 5 Administrative Specialist 3 FTE’s in CY1, and 1 Administrative Specialist 3 FTE for each of CY2 – CY5.  This is the only SLC that changes, however the Total FTE’s for all contract years is 48. Please confirm that Table 5 should identify 5 Administrative Specialist 3 FTE’s for all contract years.
	Table 5 has been changed to identify 5 Administration Specialist 3 FTE’s for all contract years.

	32
	Table 5, Section L, page 37
	L
	Table 5, Section L, page 37:  Under 3.2, Management and Administration of the TEC Contract, there are 5 Administration Specialists under “CY1 FTE,” but only 1 for CY2 thru CY5; however the FTE totals at the bottom of the page are all the same.  Please clarify.
	Table 5 has been changed to identify 5 Administration Specialist 3 FTE’s for all contract years.

	88
	Section L, 4.1.4 Technical Approach, pg. L-37
	L
	In Table 5 – Completion Form IGE, the Administration Specialist 3 position reads five FTEs for CY1 and one FTE for CY2 – CY5. However, the FTE Totals equal 48 for CY1 – CY5. Is the offeror to assume that the Administration Specialist 3 position should read five FTEs for CY1 – CY5 or should the FTE totals for CY2 – CY5 equal 44 FTEs?
	Table 5 has been changed to identify 5 Administration Specialist 3 FTE’s for all contract years.

	12
	L Part 2 -General Information to Offerors,  Table 6
	L
	Will the sum of the IGE FTE for the IDIQ Sample Delivery Orders, when issued, equal the total IDIQ IGE FTE as stated in Table 6 IDIQ IGE? 
	No, the IGE for the sample delivery orders is significantly less than the IGE for the total IDIQ estimate by the Government to be awarded over the life of the contract.

	13
	L Part 2 -General Information to Offerors,  Table 6
	L
	Staffing in table 6 includes 2 Quality Assurance Specialist II even though Quality Assurance is specified as a completion form function and does not appear to be a performance requirement in Sections 4 thru 7 of the SOW. Please clarify whether quality assurance or any other completion form functions are also considered IDIQ under some circumstances and if so please provide details.
	The two Quality Assurance Specialists II specifically address activities described in WJI LQUALITY-0192 (Laboratory Quality Assurance) and WJI LQUALITY-0201 (Good Laboratory Practices).  These WJIs cover work performed for most processes used in the chemistry and metallurgy laboratories including general analytical measurements, method development, system development, and general considerations in project management.  These activities are performed independently of activities specified in Section 3.5 of the SOW and are specific requirements to IDIQ tasks.  

	14
	L Part 2 - General Information to Offerors
	L
	To assist in planning small business tasking and procurement, would the Government consider requiring discrete pricing of non-labor resources on each IDIQ Sample?
	The government does not require offerors to propose non-labor resources for sample delivery orders.

	15
	Attachment L-1, Cost Templates
	L
	The SPT reflects Baseline, LOE, and IDIQ and Total. We recognize that Baseline equates to Completion Form and there is no LOE requirement on the TEC Contract. Please clarify.
	Templates have been corrected.  

	16
	L.17 (b)
	L
	The RFP requires the offeror to use “not smaller than 12 point non-compressed Arial font.” Please consider Times New Roman 12 point as a minimum sized text font and Ariel 9 point for a graphic minimum font.
	The draft RFP states the use of 12-point non-compressed Arial to be used.  However, you may use Ariel non-compressed 9 on tables, charts, and graphics only.  Additionally, the proposals should be printed on 20 lb bond paper.


The following products are excluded from the page counts specified in paragraph L-17 (a): 

Safety and Health Plan (DRD-002)

Quality Plan (DRD-003)

Work Breakdown Structure and Dictionary (DRD-007)

Contract Management Plan (DRD-008)

Overall Program Reporting Plan (DRD-009)

Small Business Subcontracting Plan (DRD-011)

Government Property Management Plan (DRD-014)

Environmental Compliance Plan (DRD-017)

Other plans and products excluded from the page count are:

Sample Associate Contractor Agreement

Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan

Staffing Plan

Total Compensation Plan

Labor Relations Plan

Phase-In Plan

Teaming agreements (proposed or existing)

	

	52
	L.17 (c) Proposal Page Limitations
	L
	We note that the Government has indicated that plans are excluded from the page count.  To ensure that we understand the definition of the “plans” is the same as the Government’s, would the Government please confirm that the following plans represent the complete list of plans that are excluded from page count:
1) Contract Management Plan (pg. L-18)
2) Overall Program Reporting Plan (pg. L-18)
3) Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan (pg. L-19)
4) Staffing Plan (pg. L-19)
5) Total Compensation Plan (pg. L-20)
6) Labor Relations Plan (pg. L-21)
7) Safety and Health Plan (pg. L-22)
8) Quality Plan (pg. L-22)
9) Environmental Compliance Plan (pg. L-22)
10) Phase-In Plan (pg. L-22)
11) Small Business Subcontracting Plan (pg. L-23)
12) Work Breakdown Structure and Dictionary Plan (pg. L-23)
	The following products are excluded from the page counts specified in paragraph L-17 (a): 
Safety and Health Plan (DRD-002)
Quality Plan (DRD-003)
Work Breakdown Structure and Dictionary (DRD-007)
Contract Management Plan (DRD-008)
Overall Program Reporting Plan (DRD-009)
Small Business Subcontracting Plan (DRD-011)
Government Property Management Plan (DRD-014)
Environmental Compliance Plan (DRD-017)

Other plans and products excluded from the page count are:
Sample Associate Contractor Agreement
Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan
Staffing Plan
Total Compensation Plan
Labor Relations Plan
Phase-In Plan
Teaming agreements (proposed or existing)

	45
	L 4.1.1 (MA2.j) Management Approach
	L
	The Government has requested that teaming agreements for major subcontractors be provided with the proposal.  We suggest that these teaming agreements be excluded from the page count for Volume 1.  Would the Government please clarify this requirement?
	Teaming agreements have been excluded from the page limitations.

	18
	L-4, DO#2, page L-4-7 
	L
	In the subsystem testing portion there is no indication of the type or scope of the subsystem(s) to be tested.  Please identify the subsystem(s) or scope.
	The subsystem would consist of the following components:  Oxygen gas compressor, 1 cu.ft oxygen storage tank, pressure and temperature transducers, remote operated valves, remote operated regulators, check valves, tubing, and system control panel.  System would have a Maximum Operating Pressure of 2000 psi.  The Sample Delivery Order has been modified to reflect these changes.

	19
	L-4
	L
	Reserved
	This question was withdrawn by the offeror.

	20
	L-4, DO#7, page L-4-23
	L
	In the first section under “Products”, it says “Develop and maintain the next FY Task Plan.  The task . . . .”  The DO period of performance as stated in Section 4.1 is only 8 months.  Please clarify the requirements.
	Sample Delivery Order 7 has been deleted from the RFP.

	21
	L   part m.  Page L-19
	L
	We are a large business that designs and builds flight hardware, and are currently involved in the CEV procurement.  Our company has written and successfully executed many Conflict of Interest mitigation plans. Would WSTF consider us to have a COI from a test and evaluation (TEC contract) standpoint?
	The potential for conflict exists and will require a Conflict of Interests Avoidance Plan.

	22
	2.0 Operating Environment, page C-4:  “……Associate Contractor Agreements (ACA’s) shall be required between TEC and Facility Operations Support Contract (FOSC) Contractors and other support Contractors.”
	C
	Please describe further what WSTF is looking for in proposals regarding ACA’s.   Who are the other support contractors, and what do they do?   How will non-core ACA work be funded?
	The other support contractors at WSTF will include Security (currently being competed at JSC), occupational health (currently being competed at JSC), and phones/IT with ODIN.  Offerors will have to determine if ACA's will have to be negotiated with the other WSTF contractors.  

Each contractor will bill the Government directly for the work performed and funding will be managed by the Government.

	23
	4.3
	C
	Does WSTF have a preventive maintenance recall system?  If not, will the contractor be tasked to develop one?   If one exists, does it print out monthly preventive maintenance task orders (PMTOs) and plans?   Are all operating systems and pressure vessels in the system?  When units/systems are down due to inactivity, is PM still performed?
	WSTF does not have a single preventive maintenance recall system but has several tailored to the particular area served.  A PM recall data base with monthly reporting is operated and maintained for the propulsion test areas that includes scheduled maintenance tasks and documents requiring periodic review.  Other test areas employ recall systems ranging from paper check lists to electronic databases.  There is a separate site wide database for the pressure vessel/systems, also reported on a monthly basis.  PMs are performed on all systems as directed in the DOs.  Inactive systems may be removed from the database reports, thus not serviced.  Offerors are free to propose innovations in managing preventive maintenance recall and should clearly identify how these innovations would be implemented and transitioned from the old to the new methodology.  

	24
	 
	L
	Please explain the mechanism the government will use to insure that the innovations found acceptable by the technical portion of the Source Selection team will be incorporated by the Price Analysts in the development of the cost realism position (for example, should the IGE for a task reflect 15 FTEs,  and the contractor proposes 12 FTEs for that task, based on innovations found acceptable to the technical team, how can the contractor be assured that the Price Analysis does not “plus up” the contractor proposal to 15 FTEs)?
	Probable cost adjustments are made to proposed FTEs only if the SEB technical team does not accept the proposed innovation.

	25
	L-4
	L
	Please provide the detailed status of the Installation and Activation of Test Stand 406 in support of the statement in Delivery Order 7; SOW 4.0,  that “the installation is currently 85% complete.”  If “installation” is 85% complete, what is the percent complete of “activation”?  What is budget?  What is budgeted cost versus actual cost? Please provide project plan, Gantt charts, Bill of Material for project.
	Sample Delivery Order 7 has been deleted from the RFP.

	27
	 
	L
	Please provide WSTF contractor overtime history at the lowest project or WBS level available (i.e., by month, by department, by project).
	Overtime history is not available.

	28
	 
	L
	Please provide the details of the direct labor staffing currently employed at the facility to allow accurate estimation of Retention percentage by labor category. 
	Offerors are directed to the IGE Tables 5 and 6.  Offerors are responsible to determine the appropriate number of FTEs.

	30
	Section 3.6
	C
	Section 3.6 in SOW is listed as IDIQ, but in Table 5, Section L, page 37, it is listed as CF
	Table 5 should not list 3.6 in the SOW as CF, and it has been removed in the final RFP.

	87
	Section C, 3.6, Environmental Requirements, pg. C-17
	C
	We note that the requirements for this SOW area are to be accomplished as an IDIQ effort.  However, in Table 5 (Section L4.1.4, pg. L-37) there is an IGE for CF support to this task.  Would the Government please clarify whether C3.6 is either IDIQ, CF, or a combination?
	Table 5 should not list 3.6 in the SOW as CF, and it has been removed in the final RFP.

	31
	Table 5, Section L, page 37
	L
	Table 5, Section L, page 37:  Why is a Safety Manager (1 FTE) listed under section 3.5, Quality Assurance, and not in section 3.3, Test System Safety Requirements?
	The title should have been Product Assurance Manager.

	33
	H.7 pg. H-5
	H
	Does NASA intend for clause H.7, found on page H-5, to apply to the fixed price part of the contract?  As we understand it, this clause requires that the contractor accept a risk of cost overrun, both in the fixed priced and cost reimbursable parts of the contract, that cannot be reasonably estimated because there is no way to foresee what kind of changes might be made throughout the life of the contract.  Would the NASA consider deleting this clause in its entirety?
	This clause applies to Completion Form/Cost Reimbursable Only.

	34
	DRD 013
	J
	Please specify 1st submittal date for DRL item 013 on page J-2.6
	Block 6 of DRL line 013 has been changed to "at transition start".  DRD 013 final is due at to contract start.  The RFP has been modified.

	35
	J-2 DRL and DRD
	J
	See pages J-2.2 thru J-2.7.  Change frequency for DRL items 002, 011 and 017 to AN; item 009 to AR; item 001 to MO; item 010 to MO/QU; and item 012 to RT.
	DRL items 002, 010, 011, 012 reflect an "AD" frequency for "as directed".  This frequency code was selected because the deliverable content requires multiple deliveries over varied periods as stipulated within the body of the respective DRDs.

DRD 017 has been changed to AN.

DRD 009 has been changed to AR.

DRD 001 deliveries are required both weekly and monthly, hence the delivery frequency is "WK/MO" as explained in the body of the DRD.

	36
	J-2 DRD
	J
	For all sample delivery orders, recommend changing the earned value reporting frequency from weekly to monthly.
	The earned value is an integral part of effective project management.  As such, the Contractor Project Leader and the NASA Project Manager use this information on a weekly basis (refer to WSP 09-0014 in the TRL). 

	37
	See page L-19, paragraph MA2
	L
	See page L-19, paragraph MA2, m.  Does NASA intend to include an Organization Conflict of Interest clause in the contract?  If so, please provide the language of the clause for review.
	Limitation of Future Contracting clause has been included in H.2.  This is the clause that defines conflict of interest limitations.

	38
	P. L-48
	L
	Page L-48, second paragraph makes reference to FAR 52.222-42.  This should be changed to 52.222-43.
	Correct.  The RFP has been modified.

	39
	pg.L-46
	L
	Page L-46 first paragraph defines major subcontractors as those with an estimated annual value exceeding $1M.  Page L-52 third paragraph defines minor subcontracts as those with an estimated annual value below $15M.  Page L-53 fourth paragraph defines the major subcontractor threshold as $5M per year. 

Please provide a consistent definition for major and minor subcontracts.
	A major subcontractor is one with an estimated annual value that exceeds $1 Million.  The RFP has been modified to be consistent with this definition.

	40
	3.6
	C
	With the exception of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Contractor, to what extent will the Government indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor from any and all liabilities, settlements, penalties, fines, claims, suits or judgments, including court costs and attorney’s fees as a result of a failure or violation to conform or comply with the Environmental Requirements as specified in Section 3.6 of RFP NNJ05098306R?
	The Government will not indemnify nor hold harmless the Contractor as described since there is no statutory authority to do so.

	41
	section 4.0; 5.0
	C
	With the exception of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Contractor, to what extent will the Government indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor from any and all liabilities, settlements, penalties, fines, claims, suits or judgments, including court costs and attorney’s fees as a result of a failure or violation to conform or comply with the Propulsion Testing Projects and the Materials and Components Testing Projects as specified respectively in Sections 4.0 and 5.0 of RFP NNJ05098306R?
	The Government will not indemnify nor hold harmless the Contractor as described since there is no statutory authority to do so.

	42
	C 3.5 Quality Assurance SOW
	C
	This SOW indicates that the contractor “…shall provide quality plans, controls, WSTF activities performed in response to the contract.”  In the FOSC SOW 3.5, the Government states that “Quality assurance document review and control and operational verification are performed through the WSTF TEC.”  There appears to be a discrepancy between the TEC requirement for quality assurance functions on “the contract” (which we interpret to indicate the TEC) and the FOSC requirement for quality assurance by the WSTF TEC.  Would the Government please clarify this requirement?
	Section 3.5 of the TEC SOW in the DRFP reads, "The Contractor shall provide quality plans, controls, systems, processes, and maintain objective evidence required to assure successful performance of WSTF activities performed in response to the contract.  In addition, the Contractor shall provide services for the verification, acceptance, and documentation required to produce WSTF products."  

This has been revised to read, "The Contractor shall provide quality plans, controls, systems, processes, and maintain objective evidence required to assure successful performance of WSTF activities.  In addition, the Contractor shall provide services for the verification and acceptance of FOSC services integral to product delivery, and documentation required to assure successful realization of WSTF products."
 
Offerors should also note that the activities described in section 3.5 k., stipulating TEC quality assurance performance of source and receiving inspection requirements, is also applicable to verification of FOSC services.

  

	43
	Section J-4, List 2
	J
	We assume that the offeror does not have to identify or include in our cost proposal for the TEC, any costs associated with the use of GSA vehicles and that the 35 vehicles identified in this list will be available to the TEC contractor.  Would the Government please confirm this assumption?
	This assumption is correct.


1) What TEC contractor functions must be accommodated in the floor space identified in this list?

2) It is not clear what the intent of the note (“Splitting of Floor Space has not been determined at this time”) on this list indicates.  Would the Government please clarify?

	
	The TEC management functions that need to be located in the WSTF 100 Area will be housed in this floor space as well as the corresponding FOSC management functions.  Until the management structure of both the successful offerors is known, the division of floor space cannot be determined.  Because the list provided minimally useful information, it has been removed from the RFP. 

	46
	L 4.1.2 (OP1.b) Organization and Key Personnel
	L
	The reference to Table 1 in this paragraph appears to be incorrect.  Would the Government please clarify where the Government provided FTE information is to be found?
	The reference should be to Tables 5 and 6.  The RFP has been modified.

	47
	L 4.1.2 (OP1.b) Organization and Key Personnel
	L
	The RFP refers to the “major parent level of the WBS” in this paragraph.  Would the Government please define this term with respect to the expected WBS for the TEC?
	The RFP has been changed to read "at the lowest level of the offerors WBS" to clarify the instruction.

	48
	L 4.1.4 General Information to Offerors (pg. L-38)
	L
	The RFP states that “…the following table depicts the direct labor staffing for the sample delivery orders …”  Is this meant to indicate that if all of the sample delivery orders presented in the DRFP were to be performed simultaneously, that this would be the total IDIQ staffing levels associated with these combined efforts?  It is not clear what information this statement was intended to convey to offerors.  Would the Government please clarify this statement?
	The RFP has been changed to read as follows:  The overall SOW IDIQ IGE requirements set forth in Table 6 depicts the direct labor staffing for the total IDIQ estimate by the Government to be awarded over the life of the contract and is based on historical usage factors which may not be representative of 100% of usage for future work.  Table 7 is the IGE is based on the Government’s estimated requirements for work required by the sample delivery orders.  

	49
	Attachment  L-4, Sample Delivery Orders
	L
	We note that the Sample Delivery Orders included in the DRFP are numbered Delivery Order 1, 2, 3, 4, and 7.  Is there any significance to the fact that Delivery Orders 5 and 6 are absent from the DRFP?
	Sample Delivery Order 5 was not ready when the Draft RFP was released.  It will be in the final RFP.  Sample Delivery Orders 6 and 7 will not be in the final RFP.

	50
	4.3 Volume IV – Price/Cost Proposal
(pg. L-45)
	L
	In the Completion Form Pricing Flowchart the initial box in the flow chart is labeled “Technical Resources Summary.”  Is this the same form as the Technical Resources Summary Template described in the opening paragraph of the Completion Form Workbook Instructions?
	The technical resources summary and the technical resources summary template referenced in this question are one and the same.

	51
	4.3 Volume IV – Price/Cost Proposal
(pg L-50)
	L
	In the Technical Workbook Instructions paragraph (i) the Government states that “Hard copies of the three Summary Templates are to be included in Volume II.  
1) In reviewing the list of templates provided on page L-44 we note that the following Summary Templates are identified:
- TRST
- SCST
- PCST
- ISCT
- SPT
Would the Government please clarify which three of these are to be included in Volume II?
2) Would the Government please clarify where in Volume II these templates should be placed?
3) Do these templates fulfill the requirement specified in the General Information to Offerors on page L-28 for a Resources Table (Table 3)?
	1.  As stated in the technical workbook instructions, the three summary templates listed are the technical resources summary template (TRST), the technical resources template (TRT) and the efficiency template (ET) are to be included in Volume II.   2.  The offeror shall use their discretion as to where these templates are to be placed in Volume II.   3.  The templates do not fulfill the requirements for the specific technical understanding and resources requirements (C.) Resources Table.  The offerors must provide all three templates and the (C) Resources Table.  


Although excluded from the page count, we note that the Government has not indicated any page count limitations for the plans required in the DRFP.  We believe it would be in the best interests of both the Government and the offeror to specify page limitations on all plans to ensure that the offerors focus on relevant issues and approaches rather than on development of lengthy plans that must be reviewed and evaluated by the Government.   Our recommendations for these plans are:

1) Contract Management Plan (20 pages)

2) Overall Program Reporting Plan (15 pages)

3) Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan (5 pages)

4) Staffing Plan (15 pages)

5) Total Compensation Plan (20 pages)

6) Labor Relations Plan (10 pages)

7) Safety and Health Plan (40 pages) 

8) Quality Plan (25 pages)

9) Environmental Compliance Plan (15 pages)

10) Phase-In Plan  (10 pages)

11) Small Business Subcontracting Plan (15 pages)

	12) Work Breakdown Structure and Dictionary Plan (25 pages)
	To ensure that issues are adequately addressed in each of the plans, the government does not intend to limit the page count on plans.  However, offerors are highly encouraged to provide only the relevant information necessary to the plan.  Filling the plans with extraneous or repetitive information is discouraged. 

	54
	L.4 .1.1 Management Approach (MA4)
(pg. L-20)
	L
	The Government has indicated that a Total Compensation Plan is required and we understand that this plan is excluded from page count.  However, the Government has also indicated that “A narrative discussion of the TCP shall be provided in the management volume.”  It is not clear what the extent of the narrative discussion should include.  For example, should this be a summary, a detailed presentation of the TCP, an overview of major features, a discussion of how the TCP relates to other elements of the management approach, or other information?  This would appear to be a redundant requirement to the TCP itself.  Would the Government please clarify or amplify this requirement?
	The Government agrees that the requirement for a narrative discussion of the TCP in the management volume is redundant and unnecessary.  This has been removed from the final RFP.


L4.1.4 Part 2: Specific Technical Understanding and Resources


The instructions under A. Technical Understanding of Requirements, apply to those portions of the Completion Form effort as designated in Table 1 and to the sample delivery orders as designated in Table 2.  Per Table 1, only SOW 3.2 and 3.5 require a discussion of technical approach (subparagraph (a) Completion Form) and a discussion of risk (subparagraph (c) Risk).  Per Table 2 each sample delivery order requires a discussion of technical approach (subparagraph (b) Sample Delivery Orders (IDIQ)) and a discussion of risk (subparagraph (c) Risk).  Note that discussion of technical approach for the sample delivery orders includes needed functions from the Completion Form SOW.

The RFP has been modified as follows:

"(c) Risk

For both Completion Form and the Sample Delivery Orders (IDIQ), describe the processes used to accurately identify, monitor, and control technical risks.  Identify those specific technical risks that the offeror believes should be addressed relative to performance of work under all sections of the SOW and discuss plans to mitigate or accept each risk."

	

	56
	L4.1.4 Part 2: Specific Technical Understanding and Resources
Table 1 – Specific Technical Understanding and Resources Requirements, Completion Form
	L
	Our understanding of the requirement to respond to TA2 is that we are to provide a Basis of Estimate & Efficiencies or Cost Savings (reference paragraph B, pg. L-27) for only SOW 3.2 and 3.5.  Would the Government please confirm that this is the requirement?
	Per Table 1, discussions of the basis of estimate & efficiencies or cost savings are to be provided for SOW 3.2 and 3.5.  Per Table 2, discussions of the basis of estimate & efficiencies or cost savings are to be provided for each sample delivery order.


L4.1.4 Part 2: Specific Technical Understanding and Resources

	Table 1 – Specific Technical Understanding and Resources Requirements, Completion Form
	L
	In the instructions for this table the Government states that “Paragraphs designated with a ‘C’ represent a roll-up of resources.”  In the case of SOW 3.2, 3.3.1, 3.4.1, 3.5, and 3.6 there are no subparagraphs to “roll up” to this level.  Would the Government please clarify what level of information is required to respond to these SOW paragraphs?
	In the case where the lower level paragraphs are identified, then only the resources for that lower level SOW paragraph shall be identified.  For example:  only the resources for 3.3.1 are to be identified; no roll-up is required.
	

	58
	L4.1.4 Part 2: Specific Technical Understanding and Resources
A (c) (pg. L-27)
	L
	We note that the Government has requested a discussion of risk associated with the presentation of the Technical Understanding of Requirements “…relative to performance of work under all sections of the SOW …” We understand that the requirement of this particular paragraph is applicable only to the Completion Form SOW tasks identified in Table 1 on page L-26 and in particular to SOW 3.2 and 3.5.  It is also our understanding from the instructions in Part 1 of 4.1.4, TA1 (b) (pg. L-25) that risk should be addressed for SOW 4.0, 5.0, 6.0, and 7.0.  We are unsure what SOW areas should be addressed in each section.  Would the Government please clarify this requirement?
	The requirement is to address risk for those sections of the SOW designated with a C in Table 1 for the Completion Form work.  TA1 requires a discussion of risk for the IDIQ work covered in SOW 4.0, 5.0, 6.0, and 7.0.  

TA1 requires a discussion of the risk specific to the sample delivery orders.

	59
	L4.1.4 Part 2: Specific Technical Understanding and Resources
B (pg. L-27)
	L
	The Government has stated that the offeror is not required to estimate non-labor resources for the IDIQ portion of the contract.  “However, a narrative BOE shall be provided …” It is not clear what information would be provided in a narrative BOE that did not require an estimate of the non-labor resources.  Any BOE must, by definition, provide the rationale for arriving at a specific estimate.  We are confused about what narrative that does not include an estimated cost would “…depict the offeror’s understanding of the required non-labor resources …” We also believe that any discussion of non-labor resources is more appropriately placed in the Cost Volume with other cost elements.  Would the Government please clarify this requirement?
	In order for the offeror to demonstrate their understanding of the technical requirements, the offeror shall provide a description of non-labor resources to satisfy a particular delivery order.  No estimate in terms of cost is required.

	60
	L4.1.4 Part 2: Specific Technical Understanding and Resources
A (b) (pg. L-27)
	L
	We believe that the reference to Table 6 in this paragraph is incorrect as this table does not identify the sample delivery orders.  Would the Government please correct this reference?
	The reference should be to Table 2; the RFP has been modified to reflect this correction.  Table 2 has also been corrected to reflect the specific sections of the sample delivery orders to which this requirement applies.

	61
	L4.1.4 Non-Labor Resources
(pg. L-39)
	L
	It would appear that the Government is requesting that offerors address the requirement for and level of non-labor resources in the Technical Volume.  We believe that this discussion is more appropriate to the Cost Volume with the discussion of other elements of contract cost.  Would the Government consider moving this discussion on non-labor resources to the Cost Volume?
	Non-labor resources shall be provided in the technical volume.  Refer to the last paragraph under CF non-labor resources in this section for clarification of how information should be developed for the Cost Volume.

	62
	L4.1.4 Non-Labor Resources
(pg. L-39)
	L
	The Government indicates that the non-labor resource numbers presented in the DRFP do not include IT equipment.  We understood that all contract IT equipment was provided by the Government either directly under the contract or through the ODIN contractor.  Would the Government please clarify what IT equipment the TEC contractor will be required to provide to support the TEC?
	In addition to the IT equipment provided by the Government, the offerors are only required to provide additional equipment (if any) which they feel is necessary to perform the financial reporting requirements of the contract.


L4.5 Volume IV – Cost/Price Proposal

	(pg. L-45)
	L
	In the Completion Form Pricing Flowchart, we assume that the “Technical Resources Summary” box represents the Technical Resources Summary Template (TRST) referred to in the introductory paragraph on this page.  Would the Government please confirm or correct this assumption?
	This assumption is correct.
	

	64
	Attachment L-4 – Sample Delivery Orders
	L
	We believe that the requirement for a detailed technical response to Sample Delivery Orders does not result in proposals from the offeror that focus on the critical management issues associated with operation of a contract as complex as the TEC.  We suggest that either (1) the requirement for response to sample delivery orders be eliminated or (2) that these sample delivery orders function on management approaches rather than on technical approaches.  Would the Government please consider one of these options?
	The Government carefully considered all options and determined is necessary to continue the current approach using Sample DO's to obtain both technical and management approaches for evaluation.

	65
	SOW 3.3
	C
	We note that the FOSC DRFP includes the following requirements for employee safety:
3.3.b Prepare and submit employee injury and lost-time rate on a monthly basis
3.3.c Ensure mishaps and close calls are reported, analyzed, and resulting corrective actions are completed
3.3.f Perform surveillance of work tasks, advising personnel and supervisors on engineering controls, safe work practices, and personal protective equipment for the task
3.3.g Provide NASA and Contractor management, supervision, and personnel with OSHA and NASA institutional safety requirements and implementation options
3.3.h Advise WSTF management, supervision, and personnel of recommendations to eliminate or control unsafe conditions or acts
3.3.i Perform workplace surveys where potential health hazards may exist including: air sampling of hazardous chemicals handled or used; reviewing ergonomics, heat stress, lighting, noise, and engineering controls; reviewing chemical usage and handling procedures; and performing hazard analysis to ensure that appropriate personnel protective equipment is utilized
We believe that these requirements apply equally to the TEC effort and suggest that 
these be added to the TEC SOW. 
	TEC Test System Safety is required to coordinate system safety hazard identification, monitoring, and control with the FOSC.  FOSC Institutional Safety is required to maintain a safe environment throughout WSTF.  FOSC is required to perform items 3.3 b, c, f, g, h, and i, for the entire WSTF work environment.  TEC DRD 002 requires that the general responsibilities, similar to FOSC DRFP 3.3 b, c, f, g, h, and i, be addressed with respect to TEC employees and specific tasking.

	66
	General
	 
	It is not clear if the TEC contractor will have responsibility for purchasing materials, supplies, and equipment necessary for the conduct of work on the contract.  We cannot find a SOW section that addresses this requirement.  Is this considered an indirect function for the TEC, will the FOSC contractor conduct all purchasing (we note that responsibility for Logistics (5.1) is a part of the FOSC SOW), or will this be a direct tasking on the TEC?
	SOW 3.2, General Requirements, includes the acquisitions, subcontracts, and business functions necessary to perform the statement of work, deliver all required DRDs and other deliverables, and meet all contract requirements including safety, quality, environmental, and energy conservation.  The RFP has been modified to clarify that procurement for TEC activities is a function under this contract, while the logistics of receiving and shipment of materials, supplies, and equipment is a FOSC function, including the warehousing of commonly used components and supplies.

	67
	General
	 
	The DRFP currently contains 12 distinct plans that must be prepared and submitted with the offeror’s proposal.   If our recommendations are accepted this would add an additional 215 pages to the proposal technical and management submittal in addition to the 200 pages already allocated for the response.  Based on numerous other RFPs which we have responded to over the past several years, this is at or above the upper limit of submittal requirements for contracts of corresponding size, scope, and complexity.  While we appreciate the Government’s interest in soliciting comprehensive proposals from all offerors we would suggest, considering the large number of plans required for submittal, that the overall page count limitation be reduced to 100 pages (guideline of 50 each for management and technical, not to exceed 100 total).  This will encourage offerors to concentrate on presenting the meaningful discriminators in their approaches and ensure that the NASA evaluation team is provided a succinct response directly related to the management and technical requirements of the contract. 
	In order to ensure that each offeror can adequately address their management and technical approach, the Government has decided to retain the page limits previously listed in the DRFP.  However, offerors are highly encouraged to provide only the relevant information necessary to understand their proposal.  Filling the page count with extraneous or repetitive information is highly discouraged. 

	68
	Section L, pg. L-11, L.17(b)
	L
	Section L.17 (b) states that the font should be “not smaller than 12 point non-compressed Arial font.” Since offerors will need to present some detailed graphics, such as organization charts, staffing matrices, and process flows, the 12-point font size may be restrictive for presenting information graphically. Would the Government consider permitting offerors to use a font size not smaller than 8-point Arial for all graphics?
	No.  However, you may use Ariel non-compressed 9 on tables, charts, and graphics only. 

	69
	Section L, pg. L-40, L.4 Paragraph 4.2 (2)
	L
	The RFP requires offerors to submit Past Performance Contract Listings (Attachment L-3) for relevant contracts.  Are we correct in assuming that offerors may use their own layout for the information prescribed in Attachment L-3 as long as all required items are addressed in the proper sequence and RFP page size and text size requirements are met?  
	No, the provided ATTACHMENT L-3 PAST PERFORMANCE QUESTIONNAIRE should be used. 

	70
	Section L, pg. L-23, L4.1.2, OP2 (b)
	L
	The Government states that for each key person, the offeror must provide a certified copy of relevant degrees. Requesting certified copies of degrees from universities may be difficult to receive in ample time to submit as part of the proposal. Would the Government consider changing this requirement to including a signature by the Key Personnel certifying that the information on the resume, including degree information, is correct and accurate? If not, would the Government please clarify what serves as an acceptable “certified copy of relevant degrees?”
	If certified copies of relevant degrees cannot be obtained in time from the educational institutions to meet the proposal delivery date, a signature by the Key Personnel certifying that the information on the resume, including degree information, is correct and accurate may be substituted.  The Government reserves the right to independently verify the degrees if this method is chosen.

	71
	Section L, pg. L-23, L.4.1.2, OP2.b
	L
	The RFP states that resumes (Attachment L-1) must be submitted for all proposed Key Personnel. Are we correct in assuming that offerors may use their own layout for the information prescribed in Attachment L-1 as long as all required items are addressed in the proper sequence and RFP page size and text size requirements are met?
	No, the provided Attachment L – 2 KEY PERSONNEL RESUME (TEC) should be used. 

	72
	Section L, pg. L-49, L4.3
	L
	In the discussion of the IDIQ Summary Cost Template the Government indicates that the pricing for Contract Years 2 through 5 is only intended to provide the Government visibility regarding the effect of the proposed rates in the out years.  This is followed by the statement “This out year estimate will be used for selection purposes.”  It is not clear why the out year estimates - which are based on an undefined IDIQ level of support - would be used for selection purposes.  Would the Government please clarify this statement?
	The purpose for this template is to see the effect of the fully burdened labor rates from years 2 through 5.  The IDIQ portion is undefined; however, the fully burdened labor rates are not.  These fully burdened labor rates will be incorporated into Section B of the contract as negotiated rates.

	73
	Section L, page L-40, L.4.2 Volume III – Past Performance
	L
	We suggest that the Government’s evaluation of the offeror’s past performance would be improved if each offeror were requested to provide a narrative summary (up to 5 pages) of the relevance of their referenced contracts in terms of size, scope, and complexity to the WSTF TEC effort.  We also suggest that the Government consider limiting the number of contract write ups referenced in the Past Performance volume in order to ensure that the volume is used to provide NASA with the offerors’ most relevant contract information. A successful approach we have observed on other NASA contracts is to limit the prime to submitting the 3 to 5 most relevant contracts that are in process or completed in the last three years with an additional allocation of 3 to 5 most relevant contracts per major subcontractor.  We recommend that these contract write ups include administrative information and relevance for each contract and limited to 3 to 4 pages.  
	The RFP, as it is currently written, allows for offerors to provide narrative summaries at their discretion.  Although this is not specifically listed as a requirment, it is not prohibited and offerors are encouraged to focus on the relevancy of their past performance submittals.  The Government has further decided not to limit the number of contracts submitted for past performance.

	74
	F.9 Phase-In and Phase-Out
	F
	The Government indicates that “office space will not be provided by the Government during the phase-in period.” Having dedicated office space on-site minimizes the substantial stress for the workforce during a contract transition – giving them a quick and easy point of reference to ask questions about the phase-in process and to submit applications. The Government states that offerors may propose portable office space to be located at WSTF; however, it is not clear how the portable office space option would work. For example, would the offeror be required to provide utilities and would the offeror have Internet access in these portable offices? As a result of these logistics issues, we suggest that the Government consider providing office space on-site in order to conduct on-site interviews. During the site tours, we noticed there was unused space that could possibly be used during phase-in. For example, the South High Bay in the 200 area is currently being used for storage, and the offeror could use some of this space to conduct necessary phase-in activities in order to minimize the impact on the workforce. If the Government will not consider providing on-site office space, would the Government provide more information on setting up portable office space at WSTF, such as: 
• Utilities service
• Suggested on-site location and amount of space available
• Availability of Internet access
• Restrictions, if any, on setup of wireless communication for computer networks
• Any restrictions on physical access to site during phase-in
• Availability of WSTF auditorium for phase-in meetings
	Office space in Building T-20 will be provided for the phase in.  The building has about 2700 sq. ft. and is connected to the WSTF LAN.  This office space will be shared by the TEC and FOSC successful offerors.

	75
	Section L, page L-17, L.4.1.1 (MA1)
	L
	After reviewing the Draft RFP and discussing the Associate Contractor Agreement (ACA) during the pre-proposal conference, it is uncertain the level of information that the Government expects to see in the draft ACA included in the proposal. Since offerors will not know who the associate contractor will be until contract award, it will be difficult to include a detailed approach to the ACA. Is the Government expecting to see a high level approach or a more specific, detailed approach to the draft ACA? 
	Address the proposed approach for each element where interaction with the FOSC is required.  This should reflect your most desirable agreement with the FOSC (independent of who the FOSC contractor will be) and any contingencies if this position might not be accepted.

The requirement for a draft ACA has been removed from the RFP.

	76
	L4.3 Volume IV - Cost/Price Proposal, pg. L-41
	L
	In this section the Government requires that the contractor show escalation rates and how they are used to price the submission. No contractor is able to predict escalation rates with any degree of certainty. This includes labor rates and other volatile rates, such as those of health care costs.  An offeror’s visibility into escalation factors over a five-year contract period is very limited and is subject to many factors outside of their control.  Specifying the escalation factors will ensure a consistent pricing approach across all offerors and provide the Government with the maximum visibility into the realism of total contract cost. To ensure that the Government does not receive any “low ball” offers based on unrealistic escalation rates, we strongly suggest that you specify escalation rates for salary and fringe benefits.
	The offeror is responsible to determine the future escalation rates for direct labor and take into account volatile costs such as health care.  The offeror's proposal should provide a basis of estimate as to how the escalation rates were determined such as history, forecasting models, etc.  This mitigates "low ball" proposed estimates.  A DCAA audit shall also be performed to determine escalation history.

	77
	SF33 and L.22, Paragraph C and F, pg. L-14
	L
	The SF33 states that proposals should be submitted by 4:30 p.m. However, Section L.22, paragraphs C and F state that the cutoff time for proposal submission is 3 p.m. Would the Government please clarify the time the proposal is due?
	The SF 33 has been corrected.

	78
	Cost Templates
	L
	The government has provided pricing templates for both Straight Time and Overtime Labor costs.  How does the government wish the offeror to document other labor cost factors such as Hazard Pay and Shift Differential, if proposed?
	In the labor pricing template, the offeror may add additional rows to account for the hours and the rates associated with hazard pay and shift differential.  The offeror shall identify what these extra rows are with respect to these types of pay.

	79
	Ref. Section L.17 (b)
	L
	The government has specified the use of 12 point Arial font in generating the proposal.  Does this also apply to graphics, Figures and Tables, including those prepared in Excel?  Please note that the example Excel templates provided by the government use fonts significantly smaller than 12 point.
	The draft RFP states the use of 12-point non-compressed Arial to be used.  However, you may use Ariel non-compressed 9 on tables, charts, and graphics only.  Additionally, the proposals should be printed on 20 lb bond paper.

	80
	Ref. Section L.22 (f)
	L
	The government states “The cutoff time for proposal submission is 3 p.m., local time on the due date designated in paragraph (b) of this provision.” however there is no date shown in paragraph (b).
	The date has been specified.

	81
	 Ref. Page L-48
	L
	In the discussion of the IDIQ Rate Development Template, the offeror is instructed “do not escalate non-exempt fixed price direct labor wages for contract years two through five”.  If a Collective Bargaining Agreement applies to some portion of the labor proposed under this contract, and the CBA includes a clause for future wage increases, shouldn’t the offeror include these defined increases in their proposed rates?
	The offerors must not apply escalation to their proposed direct labor rates covered by CBA per FAR 52.222-43.

	82
	Ref. Page L-48 and L-55
	L
	In the discussion of the IDIQ Rate Development Template, the offeror is instructed “do not escalate non-exempt fixed price direct labor wages for contract years two through five”.  However, the offeror is expected to escalate the rates of other labor categories in the IDIQ templates, and in addition is expected to describe labor escalation policies for both exempt and non-exempt labor in the Total Compensation Templates TC (a) and TC (b).  This mixed approach to escalation seems to add confusion and presents a potentially unrealistic cost picture for the out years of the program.
	For those templates other than the total compensation templates, the offerors must not apply escalation to their proposed direct labor rates covered by CBA per FAR 52.222-43.  Only those labor classifications identified as exempt should be escalated.  Total compensation templates do not address cost reimbursement or firm fixed price; therefore, those direct labor rates should be escalated in the total compensation templates.

	83
	General
	C 
	Reserved
	 


The project management maturity levels is not in PMBOK but is actually in “Project Management Maturity Model” by J. Kent Crawford and is based on the software engineering institute’s capability maturity model.  Since this is not a generally recognized standard, MA2 e. of the RFP has been modified as follows: 

	Describe the offeror’s plan for ensuring highly effective project management for all projects and processes as outlined in the SOW.  These project management techniques should be consistent with the responses to the sample delivery orders.  Discuss the offeror’s approach to meeting the requirements of WSP 09-0014, “Project Management”.  Include how the offeror proposes to assess the project management effectiveness against the requirements of WSP 09-0014 and other performance standards they propose to use.  Include a discussion of proposed goals and timeline for improvement during the three year basic period of performance.  

	85
	Section L, Volume IV, pg. L-41
	L
	The draft RFP does not contain any reference to the New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax requirement.  Are offerors to assume that the tax is applicable to this contract and that it will be a billable to NASA? If so, would the Government provide more information related to the New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax requirements?
	New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax is applicable to this contract and it will be a billable to NASA?  Instructions for including New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax rates and cost have been added to the Cost/Price Proposal in Section L, Part II of the RFP.

	86
	L 4.1.1 MA4 (pg L-21)
	L
	In paragraph (f) the Government states that the offeror should discuss their “intent with respect to paying the incumbent employees the amount they are currently earning with salaries/wages and fringe benefits, including accrued leave.”  This statement can be interpreted to include the offeror’s provisions for recognizing years of service (or seniority) or, more extensively, the transfer of vacation and/or sick leave balances (including accrued funding) from the incumbent to the successful offeror.  In the latter case, a significant additional cost could be realized by the successful offeror as a result of the transfer of incurred (but not funded) leave balances.  Would the Government please clarify the intent of this statement and how you intend to recognize the cost of the liability transferred to the successful offeror?
	The offeror should discuss their company policy regarding the accrual of vacation and sick leave.  Any differences between exempt and nonexempt employees should be discussed.  Any special provisions for incumbent employees should be discussed.  It is not the Government's intent to require that leave balances be transferred from the incumbent.

	89
	General
	L
	Is it the government's view that a company responsible for generating test requirements at JSC for WSTF Test and Evaluation Contract does not have an organizational conflict of interest for priming the WSTF Test and Evaluation Contract?
	This is not a conflict of interest.  The prime contractor for the ESC at JSC does not make the decision to send work to WSTF or establish the requirements for that work; the decision and establishing the requirements are done by NASA JSC personnel.  The prime contractor for the TEC at WSTF does not make the decision to accept work sent from the Engineering Directorate; NASA WSTF personnel make that decision and establish the requirements through a Delivery Order.

	90
	4.1.3
	L
	How will the Government evaluate the proposed subcontracting goals and what constituted a "good" versus a "very good" versus an "excellent."  Specifically, if the offeror proposes to "meet" all the goals, does it mean they'd be graded a "good" or a "very good?" 
	The Government will not speculate on how it might evaluate proposed responses.  However, as a general rule, a proposal which meets requirements will be evaluated as 'good.'


18 of 24

